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Content is located on the north side of Church Street at number 14518 in Upper - .. ... !
Marlboro, Prince George's County, Maryland. Perpendicular to the street, the house fé;es'
east, overlooking its broad, terraced lawn, to the county courthouse. E ;

Also known as the Bowling house, this is a two-storey, two-part, frame structure with
gable roofs built in three stages. The first, built in 1787, consisted of the present
main block (the south portion) excluding the stair hall and porch. The latter were added
circa 1800. The north wing was added before 1844.

The main block has a two-storey porch, partially screened; across its east (entrance)
facade. On the first and second floors of this elevation there are three windows

and then a doorway in the northernmost bay. The west facade has identical fenestration or
the first floor, but four windows on the second, and no porch. The first floor windows
have nine-over-nine light sash, while those on the second floor have nine-over-six.

The main entrance on the east has a door -- once six-paneled, now glass above two
panels -- framed by plain pilasters and sidelights with a fanlight across them all.

The original side and fan lights have all been replaced with single sheets of glass.
The steps at this entrance are of modern brick, although the bottom tread is stone and
appears to be old. The south gable end has two large, unmatched chimnies with a
one-storey brick pent between. There is a four-over-four light window in the pent,

and a six-over-six one in the south gable between the chimney stacks and a six-over six
one on each floor to the east of the east chimney on this gable end. The foundation of
this section is of stone, with small, six-paned windows on both the east and west.

The wing was built onto the north gable end of the main block, to the north of the stair
hall. It is also two storeys tall, but slightly shorter than the main block, and only
one room deep.. It is three bays.long, with.a door in the southernmost.bay of,the first
floor on the east and the northernmost bay on the west, and windows in all other openings,
All windows.in.this .section have six-over-six sash. On the west facade:there is a small,
six-pane window to the right and above the southernmost window. A bne—storey, partially
enclpsed, screened porch covers the door and central window on the«west-fapade first flom
Most of the windows on the entire house, except those covered by porches, have louvered
shutters. On the north gable end of the wing there is a single chimney flanked by two
small, six-over-six windows in the gable.

In the south section the floor plan consists of a stair hall on the north, a large room
in the southeast corner and a slightly narrower room in the southwest corner. A small
square room has been created in the northwest corner of the latter; this room was

also divided originally (see floor plan).

In the hall the living room door appears to be the only old one remaining in place. It
is six-paneled and has part of its old lock in Place. Other similar doors have been
stored in the cellar and upstairs. A transom with vertical louvers is over the doorway
to the dining room. The hall has an ornate, plaster rosette on the ceiling; wide, curvedr
cornice; a cross-arch with simple molded trim; and narrow chair rail with a carved low
relief design. The latter does not match that elsewhere in the house. The stair is in
the northwest corner of the hall. It has.a plain walnut hand rail, square balusters
and step-ends with a scroll design. Below the stair the wall is paneled and there

is a door to the basement stairs.

AN 0 6.

SEE CONTINUATION SHEET 2.
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The two rooms in -the south section are connected by a doorway and each has a door into
the hall. Both have fireplaces on the south wall. The mantel in the living (southeast)
room is of black marble in an ornate design. To the west of it is the doorway into

the pent closet. The floor of wide pine boards has been patched to cover the area
where the original stairway was located. The chair rail is similar but not identical
to that in the hall. The cornice is curved with a design of scrolls and flowers. This
room measures about 24' x 16°'.

The southwest room is about ten feet wide and at some time in the past was divided into
two rooms. Nail holes in the floor show where the wall was located. A bathroom has
been partitioned off the north end of this room. Marks on the wall indicate that there
was a chair rail and that two different mantels have been on the fireplace. The floor
near the fireplace has been patched. Lathe in the cellar ceiling shows there has been
a fire here.

R 3
The dining room is on the north side of the hall and with the adjoining kitchen forms
the north section of the house. At some earlier time, the dining room was divided in
half (east-west). A corner cupboard of Victorian style conceals the utility pipes in
the southwest corner of the room. A tiny window is high in the west wall inside of the
cupboard. The casings on the doors and windows in this room do not match one another or
those in other rooms of the house.

The kitchen has been changed by the addition of modern equipment, cabinets and new floor
cover. The north wall has been covered over, concealing the fireplace.

The second floor is similar in plan to the main floor. The hall has very wide molded
chair rail. The door at the east end of the porch has been altered and resembles the
main door on the floor beneath it. The fireplaces in the north and southwest bedrooms
are covered. The mantel in the southeast room is plain wood with curved capitals atop
plain pilasters.

The attic has one large room on either side of the stair hall. The wall and ceiling are
plastered. The exterior wall of the north end of the hall is exposed. It clearly
indicates the addition of the north section of the house. There is a door with a
window on either side connecting the two sections of the house.

-~ SEE CONTINUATION SHEET #2.
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The cellar walls define the three stages in which the house was built. The south
section has four stone (probably from Aquia) walls. Brick partitions have been

added to make two small rooms on the west side. There is a large fireplace on the
south wall. Next to the fireplace near the east wall is a wide, short door of vertical
boards. The space where the stairway was formerly located can be seen where the ceiling
has been altered. The floor is earthen. The hall and north rooms have concrete floors
and brick walls. The west wall of the north room formerly had an exterior door near

the hall wall.

2t

The house is located in the southwest corner of the property, creating a large area of
lavn to the north and east of the house. The highest point of the property is the
northwest corner. Several curved, deep terraces which appear to be very old bring

the land down to the level of the house. One terrace (north-south) breaks the expanse
of the east yard. A border of trees of many varieties nearly surrounds the property.
Evidence of brick paths has been found in the yard.

There are no outbuildings.
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Content is one of the oldest buildings remaining in Upper Marlboro. Construction on only
two buildings in the town was begun earlier. Content and these other two are also the or
three eighteenth century houses surviving in Upper Marlboro. The main block of Content
is representative of the two-storey structures of this period, while Kingston and the B:
(or James Wardrop) house were both 1% storeys when first constructed. Content is the mos
untouched of the three; Kingston was Victorianized and the Brick house made over into

a two-storey dwelling.

Content was built in three stages. Part of the south section nearest Church Street was
built first, in 1787. The stair hall and the two-storey front porch were added next,
about 1800.

The several rows of terraces and falls on the east and north sides of the house are
typical of the sort of landscaping done in the late eighteenth and early nineteenth
centuries. Although no plantings remain, it is unusual enough for the terraces themselve
to have survived. St e e e @ - Y

Content has always been owned by -families who were “prominent -in-the-civic, ‘economic and
social affairs of Upper Marlboro,Prince George's County and the State of Maryland. The
house is:located on part of the tract "Meadow," which was patented -in 1694 by ‘Cel.' Ninian
Beall and included in Marlborough when the town was laid out in 1706.1 1In 1729 some

of this -land passed from Col. Beall's descendants to David Craufurd, a wealthy merchant
who lived at "Kingston." 2 It was his son, David, Jr., who conveyed part of lot #36 to
his infant granddaughter, Sarah Contee, in April, 1787," . . . . on which a dwelling
house is now erecting, or about to be erected . . . lé Sarah evidently died early
because in 1799 her father, Richard Alexander Contee, sold the place to his nephew,

James Alexander Magruder who also had acquired the adjoining lot #48 from his father John
Read Magruder who was Clerk of the County Court for many years.4 Almost immediately,
James Alexander Magruder sold both lots with their improvements to his brother-in-law,
William Bradley Beanes, half brother of Dr. William Beanes of the "Star Spangled Banner"
storey.5 Beanes paid 300 pounds currency for the property and sold it two years later

to Thomas Contee for 548 pounds currency. Either Beanes made a handsome profit in the sa
or he had improved the property considerably. Contee had been a member of the first
Senate of the State of Maryland. Dr. Benjamin Lee purchased the house from Contee's
estate in 1821.8 According to tradition, it was he who had the north section of the
house added. 1In_ 1844, Dr. Lee moved to his plantation near Largo and sold Content to Cal
Clarke Magruder.9 Mr. Magruder's name is conspicuous in the newspapers and Court
Proceedings of the State and County during the 1850's and 1860's for his partiqipation in
civic and legal affairs.l0® There is a story that he kept fighting cocks in the cellar

The property changed hands several times until 1921 when Mrs. Mildred W. N. Bowling
SEE CONTINUATION SHEET #3.
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purchased it. She and her descendants were in possession until the presené owner
purchased Content in 1977.

1Patents, Liber B#23, folio 133, Hall of Records, Annapolis; Maryland.
2Deeds, Liber M, folio 503, Courthouse, Upper Marlboro, Maryland.
3lkig, Liber HH, folio 480.

41bid, Liber JRM#4, folio 357; Liber JRM#7, folio 202.

Ibid, Liber JRM#7,:folio 203.

6Ibid, Liber JRM#8, folio 376.

’R. Lee Van Horn, Out of the Past, Prince George's County Historic 1
Society, Riverdale, 1976, pp. 217-218.

8Deed, Liber AB#2, folio 55, Courthouse, Upper Marlboro, Maryland.
91bid, Liber JB#3, folio 449.

10gffie Gwynn Bowie, Across the Years in Prince George's County, Garrett and
Massie, Inc., Richmond, 1947, p. 545.
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